

**PROPOSED REVISIONS TO THE CHILDREN'S COURT RULES
PROPOSAL 2026-004**

March 6, 2026

The Children's Court Rules Committee has recommended amendments to Rules 10-107, 10-241, 10-243, 10-243.1, and 10-343 NMRA for the Supreme Court's consideration.

If you would like to comment on the proposed amendments set forth below before the Court takes final action, you may do so by either submitting a comment electronically through the Supreme Court's website at <https://supremecourt.nmcourts.gov/rules-forms-files/rules-forms/open-for-comment/> or sending your written comments by mail, email, or fax to:

Elizabeth A. Garcia, Chief Clerk of Court
New Mexico Supreme Court
P.O. Box 848
Santa Fe, New Mexico 87504-0848
rules.supremecourt@nmcourts.gov
505-827-4837 (fax)

Your comments must be received by the Clerk on or before April 5, 2025, to be considered by the Court. Please note that any submitted comments may be posted on the Supreme Court's website for public viewing.

10-107. Time.

A. **Computing time.** This rule applies in computing any time period specified in these rules, in any local rule or court order, or in any statute, unless another Supreme Court rule of procedure contains time computation provisions that expressly supersede this rule.

(1) ***Period stated in days or a longer unit; eleven (11) days or more.*** When the period is stated as eleven (11) days or a longer unit of time,

(a) exclude the day of the event that triggers the period;

(b) count every day, including intermediate Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays; and

(c) include the last day of the period, but if the last day is a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday, the period continues to run until the end of the next day that is not a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday.

(2) ***Period stated in days or a longer unit; ten (10) days or less.*** When the period is stated in days but the number of days is ten (10) days or less,

(a) exclude the day of the event that triggers the period;

(b) exclude intermediate Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays; and

(c) include the last day of the period, but if the last day is a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday, the period continues to run until the end of the next day that is not a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday.

(3) ***Period stated in hours.*** When the period is stated in hours,

(a) begin counting immediately on the occurrence of the event that triggers the period;

(b) count every hour, including hours during intermediate Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays; and

(c) if the period would end on a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday, the period continues to run until the same time on the next day that is not a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday.

(4) **Unavailability of the court for filing.** If the court is closed or is unavailable for filing at any time that the court is regularly open,

(a) on the last day for filing under Subparagraphs (A)(1) or (A)(2) of this rule, then the time for filing is extended to the first day that the court is open and available for filing that is not a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday; or

(b) during the last hour for filing under Subparagraph (A)(3) of this rule, then the time for filing is extended to the same time on the first day that the court is open and available for filing that is not a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday.

(5) **“Last day” defined.** Unless a different time is set by a court order, the last day ends

(a) for electronic filing, at midnight; and

(b) for filing by other means, when the court is scheduled to close.

(6) **“Next day” defined.** The “next day” is determined by continuing to count forward when the period is measured after an event and backward when measured before an event.

(7) **“Legal holiday” defined.** “Legal holiday” means the day that the following are observed by the judiciary:

(a) New Year’s Day, Martin Luther King Jr.’s Birthday, Presidents’ Day (traditionally observed on the day after Thanksgiving), Memorial Day, Juneteenth, Independence Day, Labor Day, Indigenous Peoples Day, Veterans’ Day, Thanksgiving Day, or Christmas Day; and

(b) any other day observed as a holiday by the judiciary.

B. Extending time.

(1) **In General.** When an act may or must be done within a specified time, the court may, for cause shown, extend the time

(a) with or without motion or notice if the court acts, or if a request is made, before the original time or its extension expires; or

(b) on motion made after the time has expired if the party failed to act because of excusable neglect.

(2) **Exceptions.** A court shall not extend the time for taking any action under Rules 10-211, ~~[10-241]~~ 10-243, 10-243.1, 10-343, or 12-201 NMRA, except to the extent and under the conditions stated in those rules.

C. Additional time after certain kinds of service. When a party may or must act within a specified time after service and service is made by mail, facsimile, or by deposit at a location designated for an attorney at a court facility under Rule 10-104(C)(1)(e) NMRA, three (3) days are added after the period would otherwise expire under Paragraph A. Intermediate Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays are included in counting these added three (3) days. If the third day is a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday, the last day to act is the next day that is not a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday.

D. **Public posting of regular court hours.** The court shall publicly post the hours that it is regularly open.

[As amended, effective September 1, 1995; Rule 10-106 NMRA recompiled and amended as Rule 10-107 NMRA by Supreme Court Order No. 08-8300-042, effective January 15, 2009; as amended by Supreme Court Order No. 14-8300-016, effective for all cases pending or filed on or after December 31, 2014; as amended by Supreme Court Order No. S-1-RCR-2023-00046, effective for all cases pending or filed on or after December 31, 2024; as amended by Supreme Court Order No. _____, effective for all cases pending or filed on or after _____.]

Committee commentary. — The district court has a “reasonable time” to rule on a timely-filed motion to extend time limits in Children’s Court cases. See *State v. Sandoval*, 2003-NMSC-027, ¶ 17, 134 N.M. 453, 78 P.3d 907.

In 2014, the Joint Committee on Rules of Procedure amended the time computation rules, including Rules 1-006, 2-104, 3-104, 5,104, 6-104, 7-104, 8-104, 10-107, and 12-308 NMRA, and restyled the rules to more closely resemble the federal rules of procedure. See Fed. R. Civ. Pro. 6; Fed. R. Crim. Pro. 45.

Subparagraph (A)(4) of this rule contemplates that the court may be closed or unavailable for filing due to weather, technological problems, or other circumstances. A person relying on Subparagraph (A)(4) to extend the time for filing a paper should be prepared to demonstrate or affirm that the court was closed or unavailable for filing at the time that the paper was due to be filed under Subparagraph (A)(1), (A)(2), or (A)(3).

In 2026, this rule was amended to correct a typographical error in Subparagraph (B)(2). The general extension provisions under Paragraph B of this rule do not apply to proceedings governed by Rules 10-243 and 10-243.1, but those general extension provisions do apply to Rule 10-241. Time extension for proceedings governed by Rules 10-243 and 10-243.1 is only permitted as those rules allow.

[Adopted by Supreme Court Order No. 14-8300-016, effective for all cases pending or filed on or after December 31, 2014; as amended by Supreme Court Order No. _____, effective for all cases pending or filed on or after _____.]

10-241. Insanity at time of commission of alleged offenses; notice of incapacity to form specific intent.

A. **Defense of insanity.** Unless upon good cause shown the court waives the time requirement of this rule, notice of the defense of insanity of the respondent child at the time of the commission of the delinquent act or alleged youthful offender offense must be given within ten (10) days after whichever of the following events occurs latest:

- (1) service of the petition;
- (2) an attorney is appointed or enters an appearance on behalf of the respondent child; or
- (3) a notice is filed of an intent to seek adult sanctions.

B. **Mental examination.** Upon motion and upon good cause shown the children’s court judge shall order a mental examination of the respondent child.

C. **Determination of issue of insanity.** When the defense of insanity at the time of the commission of the delinquent act or alleged youthful offender offense is raised, the issue shall be determined in nonjury trials by the court and in jury trials by a special verdict of the jury. When the determination is made and the respondent child is discharged on the ground of insanity, a judgment dismissing the petition with prejudice shall be entered, and any proceedings for commitment of the respondent child because of any mental disorder or developmental disability shall be pursuant to law.

D. **Statement made during mental examination or treatment.** A statement made by the child during a mental examination or treatment subsequent to the commission of the alleged delinquent act or alleged youthful offender offense shall not be admissible in evidence in any criminal or delinquency proceeding before or at adjudication on any issue other than that of the child’s sanity, ability to form specific intent or competency to participate in the proceedings.

E. **Notice of incapacity to form specific intent.** If the respondent child intends to call an expert witness on the issue of whether the respondent child was incapable of forming the specific intent required as an element of an alleged delinquent act or alleged youthful offender offense, notice of such intention shall be given in the same manner and time as notice of insanity as a defense.

[As amended, effective January 1, 1987; as amended and recompiled effective May 15, 2000; Rule 10-220 NMRA, recompiled and amended as Rule 10-241 NMRA by Supreme Court Order No. 08-8300-042, effective January 15, 2009; as amended by Supreme Court Order No. 14-8300-015, effective for all cases filed on or after December 31, 2014.]

Committee commentary. — In 2026, Rule 10-107(B)(2) was amended to correct a typographical error that had erroneously identified proceedings under this rule as an exception to the general provisions for extending time. The time limit to raise the defense of insanity shall be governed under this rule and the general provisions for extending time under Rule 10-107(B)(1) NMRA.

[Adopted by Supreme Court Order No. _____, effective for all cases pending or filed on or after _____.]

10-243. Adjudication in delinquency proceedings; time limits.

A. **Child in detention.** If the child is in detention, the adjudicatory hearing shall be commenced within thirty (30) days from whichever of the following events occurs latest:

- (1) the date the petition is served on the child;
- (2) the date the child is placed in detention;
- (3) if an issue is raised concerning the child’s competency to participate at the adjudicatory hearing, the date an order is entered finding the child is competent to participate at the adjudicatory hearing. The court may order periodic judicial reviews pending completion of the competency evaluation. At each judicial review the child’s attorney shall advise the court of the status of the evaluation;

- (4) if the proceedings have been stayed pursuant to Rule 10-242 NMRA on a finding of incompetency to stand trial, the date an order is filed finding the child competent to participate in an adjudicatory hearing;

(5) if a mistrial is declared or a new adjudicatory hearing is ordered by the children's court, the date such order is filed;

(6) in the event of an appeal, the date the mandate or order is filed in the children's court disposing of the appeal;

(7) if the child fails to appear at any time set by the court, the date the child is taken into custody in this state after the failure to appear or the date an order is entered quashing the warrant for failure to appear. If the child is taken into custody in another state, the thirty (30) days shall begin to run on the date the child is returned to this state;

(8) the date the court allows the withdrawal of a plea or rejects a plea; or

(9) if a notice of intent has been filed alleging the child is a "youthful offender," as that term is defined in the Children's Code [Chapter 32A NMSA 1978], the return of an indictment or the filing of a bind over order that does not include a "youthful offender" offense.

B. Child not in detention. If the child is not in detention, or has been released from detention prior to the expiration of the time limits set forth in this rule for a child in detention, the adjudicatory hearing shall be commenced within one-hundred twenty (120) days from whichever of the following events occurs latest:

(1) the date the petition is served on the child;

(2) if an issue is raised concerning the child's competency to participate at the adjudicatory hearing, the date an order is entered finding the child is competent to participate at the adjudicatory hearing;

(3) if the proceedings have been stayed on a finding of incompetency to participate in the adjudicatory hearing, the date an order is filed finding the child competent to participate in an adjudicatory hearing;

(4) if a mistrial is declared or a new adjudicatory hearing is ordered by the children's court, the date such order is filed;

(5) in the event of an appeal, the date the mandate or order is filed in the children's court disposing of the appeal;

(6) if the child fails to appear at any time set by the court, the date the child is taken into custody in this state after the failure to appear or the date an order is entered quashing the warrant for failure to appear. If the child is taken into custody in another state, the one-hundred twenty (120) days shall begin to run on the date the child is returned to this state;

(7) the date the court allows the withdrawal of a plea or rejects a plea; or

(8) if a notice of intent has been filed alleging the child is a "youthful offender," as that term is defined in the Children's Code, the return of an indictment or the filing of a bind over order that does not include a "youthful offender" offense.

C. Multiple petitions. If more than one petition is pending, the time limits applicable to each petition shall be determined independently.

D. Extensions of time. For good cause shown, the time for commencement of an adjudicatory hearing may be extended by the children's court, ~~[provided that]~~ but the aggregate of all extensions granted by the children's court shall not exceed ninety (90) days, except upon a showing of exceptional circumstances. ~~[An order granting an extension shall be in writing and shall state the reasons supporting the extension.]~~ An order extending time beyond the ninety (90)-day limit set forth in this paragraph shall not rely solely on circumstances that were used to support another extension, but the court may consider the totality of the circumstances existing at the time of the present motion seeking extension.

E. **Procedure for extensions of time.**

(1) Motion seeking extension of time. The party seeking an extension of time shall file with the clerk of the children’s court a motion for extension concisely stating the facts that support an extension of time to commence the adjudicatory hearing. The motion shall be filed within the applicable time limit prescribed by this rule. ~~[, except that it may be filed within ten (10) days after the expiration of the applicable time limit if it is based on exceptional circumstances beyond the control of the parties or trial court which justify the failure to file the motion within the applicable time limit.]~~ A party seeking an extension of time shall ~~[forthwith]~~ serve a copy of the motion [thereof] on opposing counsel. Within five (5) days after service of the motion, opposing counsel may file an objection to the extension setting forth the reasons for such objection. ~~[No hearing shall be held except upon order of the children’s court. If the children’s court grants an extension beyond the applicable time limit, it shall set the date upon which the adjudicatory hearing must commence.]~~

(2) Order extending time. An order granting an extension of time shall

(a) be in writing,

(b) state the reasons supporting the extension, and

(c) set the date by which the adjudicatory hearing must commence.

F. **Effect of noncompliance with time limits.**

(1) The children’s court may deny an untimely motion for extension of time or may grant it if the moving party failed to act because of excusable neglect and may impose other sanctions or remedial measures, as the court may deem appropriate in the circumstances.

(2) In the event the adjudicatory hearing of any person does not commence within the time limits provided in this rule, including any court-ordered extensions, the case shall be dismissed with prejudice.

G. **Time waiver.** These limits may be waived through a waiver of time limits under NMSA 1978, Section 32A-2-7 [NMSA-1978].

[As amended, effective February 1, 1997; May 15, 2000; as recompiled and amended by Supreme Court Order No. 08-8300-042, effective January 15, 2009; as amended by Supreme Court Order No. 09-8300-003, effective April 6, 2009; as amended by Supreme Court Order No. 14-8300-015, effective for all cases filed on or after December 31, 2014; as amended by Supreme Court Order No. 15-8300-017, effective for all cases filed or pending on or after December 31, 2015; ; as amended by Supreme Court Order No. _____, effective for all cases filed on or after _____.]

Committee commentary. — The adjudicatory hearing is sometimes described in the Children’s Code as the “hearing on the petition” and is the equivalent to a trial in the adult criminal system. In 2026, the committee clarified that because this rule contains its own specific procedures for extensions of time, it is excluded from the general procedures for extensions contained in Rule 10-107(B) NMRA. It also clarified what constitutes a timely motion. The committee believes the provisions for resolving noncompliance with this rule’s time limits both affirms the state’s obligation to seek timely adjudication, and the court’s discretion to grant untimely motions, as well as the court’s discretion to impose appropriate sanctions or remedial measures.

[As amended by Supreme Court Order No. 08-8300-042, effective January 15, 2009; as amended by Supreme Court Order No. 14-8300-015, effective December 31, 2014; as amended by Supreme

Court Order No. 15-8300-017, effective December 31, 2015; as amended by Supreme Court Order No. _____, effective for all cases pending on or after _____.]

10-243.1 Adjudication in youthful offender proceedings; time limits.

A. **Youthful offender offenses.** The following time limits shall apply when a notice of intent to seek adult sanctions has been filed and an indictment or bind over order is returned that includes a “youthful offender” offense.

(1) **Arraignment.** The alleged youthful offender shall be arraigned on the information or indictment within fifteen (15) days after the date of the filing of the information or indictment or the date of arrest, whichever is later.

(2) **Time limits for commencement of adjudicatory hearing.** The adjudicatory hearing of an alleged youthful offender shall be commenced within six (6) months after whichever of the following events occurs last:

(a) The date of arraignment, or waiver of arraignment, in the children’s court of any alleged youthful offender;

(b) If the proceedings have been stayed to determine the competency of the youthful offender to participate at the adjudicatory hearing, the date an order is filed finding the alleged youthful offender competent to participate at the adjudicatory hearing;

(c) If a mistrial is declared or a new adjudicatory hearing is ordered by the children’s court, the date such order is filed;

(d) In the event of an appeal, including interlocutory appeals, the date the mandate or order is filed in the children’s court disposing of the appeal; or

(e) If the alleged youthful offender is arrested or surrenders in this state for failure to appear, the date of arrest or surrender of the youthful offender.

B. **Extensions of time.** The children’s court may extend the time for commencement of the adjudicatory hearing as set forth in ~~[this]~~ this paragraph. ~~[An order granting an extension shall be in writing and shall state the reasons supporting the extension.]~~

(1) For good cause shown, the children’s court may extend the time for commencement of the adjudicatory hearing for six (6) months.

(2) The children’s court may grant one (1) additional six (6)-month extension but in doing so shall consider the following factors:

(a) the complexity of the case;

(b) the length of the delay in bringing the alleged youthful offender to adjudication;

(c) the reason for the delay in bringing the alleged youthful offender to adjudication;

(d) whether the alleged youthful offender has asserted the right to a speedy adjudication or acquiesces in the delay; and

(e) the extent of prejudice, if any, to the parties from the delay.

(3) The aggregate of all extensions of time granted by the children’s court shall not exceed one (1) year, except upon a showing of exceptional circumstances. An order extending time beyond the one (1)-year limit set forth in this subparagraph shall not rely solely on circumstances that were used to support another extension, but the court may consider the totality of the circumstances existing at the time of the present motion seeking extension.

C. **Procedure for extensions of time.**

(1) Motion seeking extension of time. The party seeking an extension of time shall file with the clerk of the children’s court a motion for extension concisely stating the facts that support an extension of time to commence the adjudicatory hearing. The motion shall be filed within the applicable time limit prescribed by this rule. ~~[, except that it may be filed within ten (10) days after the expiration of the applicable time limit if it is based on exceptional circumstances beyond the control of the parties or trial court which justify the failure to file the motion within the applicable time limit.]~~ A party seeking an extension of time shall ~~[forthwith]~~ serve a copy the motion [thereof] on opposing counsel. Within five (5) days after service of the motion, opposing counsel may file an objection to the extension setting forth the reasons for such objection. ~~[No hearing shall be held except upon order of the children’s court. If the children’s court grants an extension beyond the applicable time limit, it shall set the date upon which the adjudicatory hearing must commence.]~~

(2) Order extending time. An order granting an extension of time shall

(a) be in writing,

(b) state the reasons supporting the extension, and

(c) set the date by which the adjudicatory hearing must commence.

D. Effect of noncompliance with time limits.

(1) The children’s court may deny an untimely motion for extension of time or may grant it if the moving party failed to act because of excusable neglect and may impose other sanctions or remedial measures, as the court may deem appropriate in the circumstances.

(2) In the event the adjudicatory hearing of any person does not commence within the time limits provided in this rule, including any court-ordered extensions, the case shall be dismissed with prejudice.

[Adopted by Supreme Court Order No. 14-8300-015, effective for all cases filed on or after December 31, 2014; as amended by Supreme Court Order No. _____, effective for all cases filed on or after _____.]

Committee commentary. — The adjudicatory hearing is sometimes described in the Children’s Code as the “hearing on the petition” and is the equivalent to a trial in the adult criminal system.

In 2026, the committee clarified that because this rule contains its own specific procedures for extensions of time, it is excluded from the general procedures for extensions contained in Rule 10-107(B) NMRA. It also clarified what constitutes a timely motion. The committee believes the provisions for resolving noncompliance with this rule’s time limits both affirms the state’s obligation to seek timely adjudication and the court’s discretion to grant untimely motions, as well as the court’s discretion to impose appropriate sanctions or remedial measures.

[Adopted by Supreme Court Order No. 14-8300-015, effective December 31, 2014; as amended by Supreme Court Order No. _____, effective for all cases pending on or after _____.]

10-343 Adjudicatory hearing; time limits; continuances.

A. **Time for hearing.** The adjudicatory hearing shall be commenced within sixty (60) days after whichever of the following events occurs latest:

(1) the date that the petition is served on the respondent;

(2) the termination of any diversion agreement;

(3) if a mistrial is declared or a new trial is ordered by the trial court, the date that such order is filed; or

(4) in the event of an appeal from a judgment and disposition on a petition alleging abuse or neglect, the date that the mandate or order is filed in the children's court disposing of the appeal.

B. **Children's court attorney.** The children's court attorney shall represent the state at the adjudicatory hearing.

C. **Extensions of time.** The time for commencement of an adjudicatory hearing may be extended by the children's court for good cause shown, ~~provided that~~ but the aggregate of all extensions granted by the children's court shall not exceed sixty (60) days, except upon a showing of exceptional circumstances. ~~[An order granting an extension shall be in writing and shall state the reasons supporting the extension.]~~ An order extending time beyond the sixty (60)-day limit set forth in this paragraph shall not rely solely on circumstances that were used to support another extension, but the court may consider the totality of the circumstances existing at the time of the present motion seeking extension.

D. **Procedure for extensions of time.**

(1) Motion seeking extension of time. The party seeking an extension of time shall file with the clerk of the children's court a motion for extension concisely stating the facts that support an extension of time to commence the adjudicatory hearing. The motion for extension must also contain a request for new adjudicatory setting. The motion shall be filed within the applicable time limit prescribed by this rule ~~[, except that it may be filed within ten (10) days after the expiration of the applicable time limit if it is based on exceptional circumstances beyond the control of the parties or trial court which justify the failure to file the motion within the applicable time limit].~~ A party seeking an extension of time shall ~~[forthwith]~~ serve a copy ~~[thereof]~~ of the motion on opposing counsel. Within five (5) days after service of the motion, opposing counsel may file an objection to the extension setting forth the reasons for such objection.

(2) Order extending time. An order granting an extension of time shall be accompanied by a notice of adjudicatory hearing, and the order shall

(a) be in writing,

(b) state the reasons supporting the extension, and

(c) set the date by which the adjudicatory hearing must commence.

~~[No hearing shall be held except upon order of the children's court. If the children's court grants an extension beyond the applicable time limit, it shall set the date upon which the adjudicatory hearing must commence.]~~

E. **Effect of noncompliance with time limits.**

(1) The children's court may deny an untimely motion for extension of time or may grant it if the moving party failed to act because of excusable neglect and may impose other sanctions or remedial measures, as the court may deem appropriate in the circumstances.

(2) In the event the adjudicatory hearing on any petition does not commence within the time limits provided in this rule, including any court-ordered extensions, the case shall be dismissed with prejudice.

(3) An appeal from an order issued under Rule 10-315 NMRA and NMSA 1978, Section 32A-4-18 ~~[NMSA 1978]~~ shall not affect the time limits set forth in this rule.

[Adopted April 1, 1976, Children's Court Rule 44 NMSA 1953; recompiled and amended effective November 1, 1978, Rule 60 NMSA 1978; amended, effective February 1, 1982; January 1, 1983; May 1, 1986; Rule 10-308 SCRA 1986; Rule 10-308 NMRA; recompiled and amended effective

February 15, 1999; as recompiled by Supreme Court Order No. 08-8300-042, effective January 15, 2009; as amended by Supreme Court Order No. 08-8300-058, effective January 15, 2009; as amended by Supreme Court Order No. 14-8300-004, effective in all cases filed on or after July 1, 2014; as amended by Supreme Court Order No. 14-8300-015, effective for all cases filed on or after December 31, 2014; as amended by Supreme Court Order No. 15-8300-017, effective for all cases filed or pending on or after December 31, 2015; as amended by Supreme Court Order No. _____, effective for all cases filed or pending on or after _____.]

Committee commentary. --- In 2026, the committee clarified that because this rule contains its own specific procedures for extensions of time, it is excluded from the general procedures for extensions contained in Rule 10-107(B) NMRA. It also clarified what constitutes a timely motion and further addressed the procedures for ruling on motions for extension of time. The procedure for extending time beyond the sixty (60)-day limit under this rule differs slightly from that under Rules 10-243 and 10-243.1 NMRA because, unlike a discrete and completed incident resulting in an allegation of a delinquent act, conditions resulting in allegations of abuse or neglect may persist and may be aggravated over time. Motions for extension of time shall provide the court with new information, including any increased or decreased risk to the child’s health or safety since a prior motion for extension. The court shall consider the totality of the circumstances in its determination of whether to grant or deny the extension of time. The committee believes the provisions for resolving noncompliance with this Rule’s time limits both affirms the department’s obligation to seek timely adjudication and the court’s discretion to grant untimely motions, as well as the court’s discretion to impose appropriate sanctions or remedial measures.

The committee recognizes that timely adjudications are critical to protecting the rights of parents to the care, custody, and control of their children. While dismissals with prejudice are generally disfavored, dismissal with prejudice in the context of a child abuse or neglect case is a particularly extreme measure because it may result in the return of a child to an abusive or neglectful environment.

[Adopted by Supreme Court Order No. _____, effective for all cases pending or filed on or after _____.]